HA-1408 c. 1870

Golden House

48 E. Gordon Street
Bel Air

private

This much altered Victorian house was built in 1870 by Edward
Golden. It was probably a simple three bay house, possibly with a
front gable, certainly with a plain gable roof. Bel Air did not build
hip-roofed houses in the Victorian period. The first round of
alterations were done by Dr. P. Bird Hopkins after 1924, He probably
added the hip roof. He certainly enclosed the west half of the porch
for a waiting room for his patients, and, since he was using the dining
room for his consulting room, he added a new dining room and kitchen
to the rear. The complete enclosure of the porch and the single story
addition around the west side and back date to the present ownership.
The house is now used as law offices.
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This two story, three bay, aluminum sided house is at 48 E. Gordon
Street in the Town of Bel Air, Harford County, Maryland. The house
has a hipped roof and is surrounded on three sides by a single story,
oddly hipped roofed addition which includes the old front porch. The
house was originally a three bay, gable roofed house, two rooms up and
down with a kitchen in a single story shed addition. The original
windows were 6/6 double hung sash. The front (south) ones still have
their shutters. The windows to the addition are 1/1. The entrance
is in the second west bay of the four bay enclosed porch. It has
a 9 pane over panel door. There is a similar door on the west side
which gives access to the new back hall and the two new offices in
the rear (north) part of the addition.

The interior has a center hall plan. On either side of the hall
in the enclosed porch are two offices. 1In the old portion of the
house the old hall has a closed string, dog-leg staircase with square
balusters and a square newel post with a tiny dentil band under the
top molding. To the east of the hall is the former living room; to
the west is the former dining room (later Dr. Hopkins's consulting
room). The hall terminates in Dr. Hopkins dining room, now the law
library. To the west of this room is the conference room (in the 1979
addition). To the east is the kitchen which is also used as a file
room. Behind the kitchen is a storage room in the addition. Behind
the law library is a transverse hall with two new offices opening
off it to the north.

The second story has four rooms (the one in the northwest corner
an enclosed porch) and bath.

All the woodwork is plain. There are no fireplaces, the house
being built for stoves. )
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

This small house, now almost surrounded by a combination of
enclosed front porch and a single story L-shaped addition, was once,
like several of the houses on the north side of E. Gordon, just two
rooms up and down with a shed addition. It probably also had a gable
roof. The hip roof is not common in Bel Air.

The house, which appears on the 1878 map, was built by Edward
Golden, probably in 1870, on land he sub-leased from John Bateman in
that year (24/161). In 1885 he bought the fee from William Galloway
(52/251). 1In 1891 he conveyed the property to his wife Joanna; he
retained a life estate. 1In 1909 Mrs. Golden conveyed the property to
er son Daniel; he sold it to Dr. P. Bird Hopkins in 1924, This small
niouse, then, remained in the Golden family for 54 years - nearly half
its life.

Dr. Hopkins, who was not connected to the J.T.C. Hopkins family,
was responsible for the first round of alterations. He added the
dining room (now the law library) and kitchen, enclosed the west half
of the front porch for a waiting room and turned the old dining room
into his consulting room. The closed string staircase is more suited
to the 1924 date, so it seems he altered that, too. The hipped roof
dates from this remodeling.

After the death of Dr. Hopkins and later of Mrs. Hopkins, the
heirs sold the property to a firm of lawyers - T. Carroll Brown,
Laurence S. Lanahan, Jr., and Cypert O. Whitfill - who rented the
property. In 1976 Mr. Whitfill left the partnership, bought the other
partners out (1018/53), and moved his offices into the house. 1In
January 1979 he enclosed the east end of the front porch and added the
wrap around addition, giving the firm a conference - settlement room
and two offices which they rent out at the moment. The aluminum
siding was put on at that time.
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LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY

STATE COUNTY

EE1FORM PREPARED BY

NAME / TITLE

M., Larew, Architectural Historian 20 November 1979

ORGANIZATION DATE

Town of Bel Air 838-8700
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE

39 _Hickory Avenue
CITY OR TOWN STATE

Bel 2ir Maryland

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
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Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.
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HA-1408

TITLE: 48 E. GORDON

4 December 1976

T. Carroll Brown & Laurence S. Lanahan, Jr.
to

Cypert O. Whitfill 2/3 interest

18 June 1974
Thomas R. Coale & Carol
to
T. Carroll Brown, Laurence S. Lanahan, Jr.,
and Cypert O. Whitfill

21 April 1971
James H. Hopkins, et. al.
to
Thomas R. Coale & Carol
property of Caroline H. Hopkins deceased
(will 30/238)

3 December 1924
Daniel J. Golden
to
P. Bird Hopkins & Caroline
90 Ft. in Gordon

24 August 1909
Joanna M. Golden
to
Daniel J. Golden (son)

17 July 1891

Edward Golden
to

Joanna M. Golden, wife

retains a life estate

1. the lease from Alfred W. Bateman's
administrator, John Bateman, 1870,
24/161

2. the fee from William Galloway,
1885, 52/251
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